
 
 

 

TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 
SELECTBOARD 

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 16, 2023 AT 6:30PM 

MARTIN MEMORIAL HALL 
5259 US ROUTE 5, ASCUTNEY,  VT 05030 

 
ZOOM MEETING AVAILABLE 

CLICK THE MOUNTAIN ON WEBSITE HOMEPAGE OR 
PHONE NUMBER: (929) 205 - 6099 | MEETING ID: 542-595-4364 |                                   

NO PARTICIPANT ID: PRESS # MEETING PASSCODE: 8021 

 
 

PHONE 
(802) 674-2626 

 
FAX 

(802) 674-2117 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Agenda Review 
4. Comments from SB, TM, and Citizens on Topics not on the Agenda 
5. Review Minutes from Previous Meeting: 10/02/2023 
6. Rep. John Arrison – Bike Path  
7. Healthcare Analysis 
8. Q1 Finance Report 
9. Village Wastewater Committee (Second Reading) 
10. Town Manager Update 
11. Appointments 

a. Budget Committee (5 Vacancies) 
b. Energy Coordinator (1 Vacancy) 
c. Green Up Coordinator (1 Vacancy) 
d. Lister (2 Vacancies) 
e. Parks and Recreation (1 Vacancy) 
f. Planning Commission (1 Vacancy) 

i. Brian Bosenberg 
g. Veterans Memorial Committee (2 Vacancies) 
h. Village Wastewater Committee  

i. Andrea De Luna-Murray 
ii. Ann Marie Christensen 

iii. John Arrison 
iv. Mark Richardson 

i. Zoning Board of Adjustment (2 Vacancies) 
12. Approve Warrant 
13. Any other business 
14. Future Agenda Items 

a. Solid Waste Fee Assessment Policy 
b. ARPA 
c. Storm Damage / FEMA  

15. Adjourn 

 

 

 



Select Board 
Martin Memorial Hall 

5259 Route 5, Ascutney VT 
Monday, October 2, 2023 

6:30 PM 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Select Board Members Present: Michael Todd, David Fuller, August Murray, Kelly 
O’Brien, Wendy Smith 
 
Select Board Members Absent:  
 
Brandon Gulnick, Town Manager 
 
Others Present: 
Olivia Savage Steve Hier  
Ray Stapleton Mark Richardson  
Flo-Ann Dango   
John Arrison   
Andrea Murray (remote)   

 
1 Call to Order 

Mr. Todd called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. 
 

2 Pledge of Allegiance 
Mr. Todd led the pledge of allegiance.  
 

3 Agenda Review 
The Select Board added item 6, Appointment of Vice-Chair.  
 

4 Comments from SB, TM, and Citizens on Topics not on the Agenda 
Mr. Arrison and Mr. Todd discussed Deliberative Session verses Executive 
Session and procedures.  
 
The Highway Superintendent gave an update on the status of roads, such as 
the structures, culverts, and ditching grants on Goulden Ridge and Mountain 
View, the paving bid on Sunset, Cherry Lane, and a section of Thrasher Road. 
The crack sealing bid for paving from last year, which is tied to Stoughton 
Pond Road and any class 2 roads, will also target Reservoir Road and Center 
road on the week of October 9th.  
 

5 Review Minutes from Previous Meeting(s):  9/18/23 
Additions/corrections/deletions: 
a. None. 



Motion: To approve the 9/18/23 minutes.  
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Ms. O’Brien 
Vote: All in favor 

 
6 Appointment of Select Board Vice-Chair 

Motion: To appoint Dave Fuller as Vice-Chair of the Select Board. 
Made by: Ms. Smith  Second: Ms. O’Brien 
Vote: All in favor 
 

7 ARPA Discussion 
During the Select Board meeting on August 21st, the Select Board asked the 
Town Manager to review the expenses proposed by residents & board 
members during the Public Input meetings, prioritize them, and propose 
expenditures of $200,000 leaving $100,000+ remaining for future allocation.  
 
The Town Manger prioritized the expenses and excluded certain expense 
requests for future consideration based on the information provided & further 
review, with many of the proposed expenses being rough estimates. If the 
board agrees with the prioritization & the expenses, the Town Manager will 
begin the process to obtain estimates for these projects, many of which will 
require the RFP process. 
 
A list of the expenses funded to date using ARPA funding. 

 
 



This second chart shows the proposed expenses ranked by priority. This 
proposal will expend an estimated $200,000 in ARPA funds. 

 
The Town received $818,054 in ARPA funds and have expended $498,331 to 
date on the expenses outlined on page 1. The Town has a remaining balance 
of $319,723. This amount is lower than calculated during the meeting on 
8/21/23 as the Town received a bill from Alva Waste for $2,888.91 to dispose 
of the C & D from the Town Garage Roof project. In the RFP and the 
Contract for the roof replacement project, the Town committed to providing a 
dumpster for the roofing projects, the Town being unaware of how much it 
would cost to dispose of. This $2,888.91 was expensed to the Town Garage 
Roof Project.  
 
The board asked that the Town look into grants for the Mapping of Scenic 
Views, and that the Town Clerk utilize her reserve accounts for the 
digitization project. The Town Clerk did note that the project she is proposing 
is to digitize Town Proceedings, and that the money in her reserve account is 
earmarked for other projects. Posts for Veterans Park, Martin Memorial Hall 



paving, Fire Department Stipends, and Town Welcome signs were also 
removed from the chart above.  

 
 
The Town can either seek grants or future budget allocations for these 
proposed expenses. The Town does have reserve accounts and there might be 
grant opportunities that some of these expenses may be eligible to apply for. If 
the proposed expenses are approved, there is still $119,723 remaining the 
board could allocate to any of these expenses. 
 
The Select Board discussed and agreed that the drainage at Martin Memorial 
Hall has become a top priority. The Select Board is going to review the rest of 
the items on the list and come back with a plan when it comes to prioritizing 
items.  
 

Motion: To authorize the Town Manager to solicit three bids for 
engineering for the drainage at Martin Memorial Hall, to select the best 
option with the Board Chair, and for the funds to be allocated from the 
ARPA funds balance. 
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Dr. Murray  
Vote: All in favor 

 
8 Solid Waste Fee Assessment Policy 

The Select Board reviewed the Solid Waste Fee Assessment Policy (Adopted 
8/5/04; Amended 11/18/10). The purpose of this policy is to establish a 
standardized procedure for the assessment and collection of solid waste 
management fees on property within the Town of Weathersfield.  
 
The Select Board discussed Section 11, Item C and how this effects the 
Exceptions section. The Town Manger stated that there had been an 
amendment strictly dealing with the permit sticker policy, which is different 
from the assessment policy. The Town Manager will get the two policies 
together and identify the differences.  
 



9 Signing Orders 
The normal process for paying the Town’s bills is for the Town Office to 
prepare a warrant which the Select Board reviews and approves thereby 
authorizing the Treasurer to sign the checks. While this process works well in 
the vast majority of cases, it is not without issues. The Select Board meets 
twice a month so there is usually a meeting every two weeks (and 
occasionally, every three weeks when there are five Mondays in a month). On 
occasion there are bills that have payment due dates prior to the next 
scheduled regular meeting. On occasion other circumstances call for a bill to 
be paid prior to the next meeting. On occasion meetings are cancelled, 
rescheduled, or otherwise postponed.  
 
Currently, the Select Board has authorized a check to be issued outside of the 
normal process in order to avoid late fees as long as the Town Manager, 
Accountant, and Treasurer all agree in writing that such is the case. The check 
then appears on the next warrant presented to the Select Board. This process 
works in some cases but does not address all of the reasons why a check needs 
to be signed in advance of the next Select Board meeting. It leaves the Town 
Office to choose between ignoring the current need and exceeding authority. 
The thought is to generate some Select Board discussion on this topic.  

 
The Select Board discussed possible solutions such as putting a dollar 
threshold, requiring three signatures, and having a Board member come sign 
for it. The Town Manger will draft a policy on what this might look like and 
bring it back to the Select Board.  
 

10 Liquor License – The Inn at Weathersfield  
a. First Class Restaurant/Bar License  
b. Third Class Restaurant/Bar License  
c. Outside Consumption Permit 
 

Motion: To renew the Inn at Weathersfield’s First Class Restaurant/Bar 
License, Third Class Restaurant/Bar License, and Outside Consumption 
Permit.  
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Ms. O’Brien 
Vote: All in favor 
 

11 Town Clerk Project 
According to the Town Purchasing Policy, all purchases over $10,000 require 
a sign-off on the purchase order. The Town Clerk has requested $22,000 from 
her Computerization Reserve Fund to have Cott Systems index data from the 
period of 6/1983-9/1993. The policy also states that there must be three bids, 
however, this is a “Sole Source Purchase” as the Town Clerk is contracted 



with this company for Land Records. The Town Clerk attached the Order 
Summary for the Select Board to review. 
 
Motion: To waive the purchasing policy for the Town Clerk project and 
authorize the Town Clerk to move forward with Cott Systems at a cost not to 
exceed $22,105.00, to be expended in the FY23-24 Municipal Records Fund.  
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Ms. O’Brien 
Vote: All in favor 
 

12 Storm Damage/ FEMA Reimbursements 
To date, we completed the Request for Public Assistance, Exploratory Call, 
Recovery Scoping Meeting, and Site Inspections. The Town has held four (4) 
meetings since the site inspection to complete the Damage Inventory, and 
Essential Elements of Information. The next step is procurement.  

 
1) Ascutney Basin Bridge: The Town already has a design for the bridge deck. 
This design will replace the bridge as it was before the storm. This will not 
increase hydraulic flow capacity. If the Select Board approves this option, the 
Town will send the project out to bid.  
2) Little Ascutney Bridge: The Town will need to advertise an RFQ for 
engineering to repair the erosion on the western wingwalls and abutment. This 
will replace the bridge as it was pre-storm. Engineering is required to obtain 
the design for proper repair. This design will be used to send the project out to 
bid.  
3) Upper Falls Covered Bridge: The Town needs to advertise an RFQ for 
engineering to design the replacement of the riprap on the northern side of the 
bridge. Following the design, the Town will need to send this project out to 
bid.  
4) Perkinsville Dry Hydrant: Once the Town receives the preliminary results, 
they will need to send this project out to bid. 
 
The Select Board discussed fixing bridges verses mitigation. The Select Board 
discussed the areas in town that flood and how there won’t be damage to fix 
again if they went with mitigation in needed areas. Difficulties some of the 
projects might bring was discussed, as well as how it would be essential in 
some cases to put in a temporary bridge deck so heavier loads can safely get 
across. The Select Board weighed in on costs and funding, speaking of 
reimbursements, government funds, and grants.  
 
The amount of time each stage of projects was discussed and it was pointed 
out that it could about a year for the engineering of the project and two years 
before the project could begin. The Select Board agreed that these storm are 
becoming more common, that mitigation has been recommended by FEMA, 



and that there is tremendous opportunity for reimbursements with this 
projects.  
 
Motion: To send out an RFP for Ascutney Basin Bridge.  
Made by: Ms. Smith  Second: Dr. Murray 
Vote: All in favor 
 
Motion: To authorize an RFQ to repair the Little Ascutney Bridge.  
Made by: Ms. Smith  Second: Dr. Murray 
Vote: All in favor 
 
Motion: To advertise an RFQ for the Upper Falls Covered Bridge project.  
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Ms. O’Brien 
Vote: All in favor 
 
There was no action needed at this meeting by the Select Board for 
Perkinsville Dry Hydrant. Mr. Todd and Dr. Murray expressed interest in 
checking out the Ascutney Basin with the Highway Superintendent.  
 

13 Village Wastewater Committee (Draft Policy) 
The Select Board reviewed the draft Village Wastewater Committee Policy 
and discussed the Town Plan, development and density in the village areas, 
and the purpose of the committee. The Select Board concluded that more time 
is needed to review the policy so that thoughtful feedback can be given and 
that a policy needs to be in place before appointing a committee. Additionally, 
a few more names are needed for appointment. The Select Board discussed 
having a representatives serving as liaison between Otter Creek and the 
Towns engineering firm. The Select Board concluded that this was only a first 
read of the policy.  
  

14 Town Manager Update  
a. Health Insurance  

The Town Health insurance rates came back. The Gold Plan from MVP is 
increasing by 12.44%, meaning if all plans stay the same, there will be a 
total cost increase of $25,594. The deductible decreased by $200 for single 
and $400 for family, with the Gold Plan only. The Town will be looking at 
all of their options and bring forward an analysis for the Board to review.  

b. Fire Department Roof 
The was a little bit of a delay on the West Weathersfield Fire Department 
roof project and will take a week to two weeks to complete.  

c. Martin Memorial Hall Updates 
The hazard tree has been removed from the Martin Memorial Parking lot. 
Additionally, the propane tank will be buried and that is scheduled for the 
middle of November.  

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/#inbox/FMfcgzGtxSvvjpBVwqkSnjvhWgnBjsGg?projector=1&messagePartId=0.1


d. First Quarter Finance Report 
The Towns First Quarter Finance Report will be given on Oct.16th and will 
consist of the first three months of the General Fund, the Highway Fund, 
and Solid Waste Fund. 

e. VTCMA Conference 
On Oct. 26th and Oct. 27th, the Town Manager will be attending the 
Vermont Towns and City’s Managers Association Conference. This will 
be the first one attended in his new role on the Board of Directors. Topics 
will include Storm Water Management; the Local Legislative Panels; 
Justice, Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion; and Lessons from Vermont’s 
Neighbors. The Town Manger will be taking vacation on Oct. 17th-Oct. 
24th. 
 

15 Appointments 
a. Budget Committee (5 Vacancies) 
b. Energy Coordinator (1 Vacancy) 
c. Green Up Coordinator (1 Vacancy) 
d. Lister (2 Vacancies) 
e. Parks and Recreation (1 Vacancy) 
f. Planning Commission (1 Vacancy) 

i. Brian Bosenberg 
g. Veterans Memorial Committee (2 Vacancies) 
h. Village Wastewater Committee  

i. Andrea De Luna-Murray 
ii. Ann Marie Christensen 
iii. John Arrison 
iv. Mark Richardson 

i. Zoning Board of Adjustment (2 Vacancies) 
 

Mr. Todd stated that the public has one more week to put their name in for the 
Planning Commission vacancy and that the Village Wastewater Committee is 
to be continued until after the policy is adopted.  
 

16 Approve Warrant 
To approve the warrants for 10/2/2023 as followed: 
 
General Funds 
Operating Expenses: $28,188.36 
Payroll: $15,440.92 
 
Highway Fund 
Operating Expenses: $13,749.77 
Payroll: $8,869.50 
 

Solid Waste Management Fund 
Operating Expenses: $22,568.61 
Payroll: $1,792.20 
 
Library 
Operating Expenses: 0 
Payroll: $2,391.97 
 



Gulden Ridge Culvert: 
$11,325.00 
 
SIU Grant: $625.00 
 

Grand Totals: 
Operating Expenses: $76,456.76 
Payroll: $28,494.59 

 

Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Ms. O’Brien 
Vote: All in favor 
 
Motion: To remove the funding raising money for the library in the amount of 
$5,524.00 to be taken off the Select Board warrants, changing the Grand Total 
Operating Expenses from $81,980.74 to $76,456.76.  
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Ms. O’Brien 
Vote: All in favor 
 

17 Any Other Business 
Motion: To appoint August Murray as the Solid Waste Representative and to 
the Solid Waste District Commission as a Voting member and to the Transfer 
Station Joint Committee for West Windsor, Reading, and Weathersfield.  
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Ms. Smith 
Vote: All in favor 
 

18 Adjourn 
Motion: To adjourn the meeting. 
Made by: Mr. Fuller  Second: Ms. O’Brien 
Vote: All in favor 

 
The meeting adjourned at 9:04 PM. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Nichole Gagnon 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

WEATHERSFIELD SELECT BOARD 
 

 
 
 

 
_______________________________ 
Michael Todd, Chairperson 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Wendy Smith, Selector 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kelly O’Brien, Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
_____________________________ 
August Murray, Selector 
 
 
_____________________________ 
David Fuller, Vice-Chairperson



 



Brandon Gulnick 
Town Manager 

TEL. (802) 674-2626 
Weathersfieldvt.org 

 

TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 
OFFICE OF THE SELECTBOARD/         

TOWN MANAGER 

5259 US ROUTE 5 
ASCUTNEY, VERMONT 05030 

 

October 12, 2023 

 
 
 
 

Susanne Terrill 
Human Resources 

 
Olivia Savage 
Principal Clerk 

 

2024 Health Insurance Study 
 
Dear Selectors,  
 
A 2024 Health Insurance Study has been completed and is attached to this Memo for review.  
 
Here are the key findings generated from this study:  
 

1) MVP increased their costs this year by 12.5%, which would lead to a $26,046 increase in 
Health Insurance in Weathersfield if we continue doing business with MVP in 2024.  
 

2) The increase with MVP also affects our employees, increasing their costs annually by 
$198 in 2024 for Single Plans, $382 in 2024 for Employee + Child Plans, $396 in 2024 for 
Single + Spouse Plans, and $557 in 2024 for Family Plans.  
 

3) The Town and Employees will save money by switching to the comparable Blue Cross 
Blue Shield (BCBS) Plan. For example, the total annual increase for the Town this year 
will be $15,461 ($10,585 less than MVP) if we switch to BCBS. The total increase for 
employees opting into a Single Plan through BCBS is $136 in 2024, employees opting 
into a Single + Child plan will have a $263 increase in 2024, employees opting into an 
Employee + Spouse plan will have a $272 increase in 2024, and employees opting into a 
Family Plan will have a $383 increase in 2024.  
 

4) The deductible in 2023 through MVP was $3,200 for Single Plans and $6,400 for 
Employee + (Spouse, Child, and Family) Plans. The deductible through BCBS in 2024 is 
$2,850 for Single Plans and $5,700 for Employee + (Spouse, Child, and Family) Plans. 
See Health Insurance Study: Page 6 – Table 8 
 

5) The existing arrangement with the HSA is disproportionate between employees that opt 
into a Single Plan and Employees that opt into an Employee + (Spouse, Child, or Family) 
Plan. For example, in 2023, employees opting into a Single Plan have a $3,200 deductible, 
and receive a $3,000 HSA, OR a 94% contribution toward their deducible through the 
HSA. Employees opting into an Employee + (Spouse, Child, or Family) Plan have a 
$6,400 deductible and receive a $5,000 HSA, or a 78% contribution toward their 
deductible through the HSA. See Health Insurance Study: Page 3 - Table 3.  
 



 6) As demonstrated in the 2024 Health Insurance Study on the following pages, all Plan 
Types were analyzed between MVP & BCBS. A Cost-Benefit Analysis was completed, 
and that Analysis demonstrates that the BCBS CDHP Plan provides the best benefits to 
employees at the most reasonable cost to the Town as compared to all other plan types 
between BCBS & MVP. See Health Insurance Study: Pages 1-14 – Tables 1-25 

 
Recommendation:  
 

1) Motion to offer the BCBS Gold CDHP Plan in 2024 to employees with an 86% 
(Employer) / 14% (Employee) contribution share. See Health Insurance Study: Page 14 – 
Tables 24 & 25.  
 

2) Motion to offer an HSA in 2024 to employees with an 86% (Employer) / 14% (Employee) 
share of the deductible for all Plan types. See Health Insurance Study: Page 13 – Table 21 

 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Brandon Gulnick 
Town Manager 
Town of Weathersfield 
5259 US Route 5, PO BOX 550, Ascutney, VT 
E. Townmanager@weathersfield.org 
P. (802) 674-2626 F. (802) 674-2117 
www.weathersfieldvt.org 



Page 1 of 14 
 

2024 HEALTH INSURANCE STUDY 

 

INTRODUCTION 
Health insurance is a critical part of an employee’s compensation package because it ensures the 
health and wellness of our employees, increases job satisfaction, and productivity. Health 
insurance plans offer preventative care that can keep our employees healthy and working. This 
study aims to provide a snapshot of the Town of Weathersfield’s current employee health 
insurance coverage, and the costs associated with this coverage for both the employer and 
employee. There are two main options for healthcare coverage in Vermont, including MVP 
Health Care, and Blue Cross Blue Shield. If the Town decides to offer Health Care to employees, 
the Town of Weathersfield should enroll in one of the Small Group Plans from one of these 
providers by the end of November each year, which gives us an opportunity to get everything 
processed before the deadline.  
 
The key topics in this study include the following:  

1) Existing coverage and costs 
2) 2024 Cost Benefit Analysis (2023 to 2024 – Status Quo) 
3) 2024 Cost/Benefit Analysis (BCBS v. MVP) 
4) 2024 Cost Benefit Analysis (2024 MVP V. BCBS Platinum Plans)  
5) 2024 Recommendation  

 
CURRENT (2023) COVERAGE 
The Town of Weathersfield currently offers two (2) Healthcare Plans to Weathersfield employees 
that work in full-time hourly or salaried positions. Any employee working 30 + hours is eligible 
for insurance benefits. There are fifteen (15) employees working for the Town that are eligible 
for benefits. The two (2) healthcare plans we offer include the MVP Gold 3 and Platinum 1 
plans. The Town shares the cost with employees, and pays 86% for the Gold 3 Plan, and 90.5% 
of the Platinum Plan. The employee pays 14% of the Gold 3 Plan and 9.5% of the Platinum Plan, 
depending on the plan they choose to enroll in.  
 
In addition to the Health Care Plan, the Town funds a Health Savings Account (HSA) for 
employees that choose the Gold 3 Plan. Employees that opt into a “Single” Gold 3 Plan receive a 
$3,000 HSA annually, and this offsets the $3,200 out of pocket maximum, so the employees total 
out of pocket cost is $200 OR 6% of the out-of-pocket maximum. Employees that opt into the 
“Single + Child,” “Single + Spouse,” or “Family” plans receive a $5,000 Health Savings 
Account annually, which offsets the $6,400 out of pocket maximum, so the employee’s annual 
out-of-pocket maximum is $1,400 annually or 22% of the out-of-pocket maximum. 
 

To: Selectboard Members 
From:  Town Manager 
CC:  Town Employees 
Date:  October 11, 2023 
RE:  2024 Health Insurance Study 



Page 2 of 14 
 

Lastly, the Town HSA  an opt-out program. Employees who are covered under another medical 
plan can “opt out” of coverage and receive a cash payment in lieu of benefits. Employees 
choosing the opt-out receive 50% of the cost savings, not to exceed $10,000 annually, and that is 
paid in weekly installments based on the full amount being paid over the calendar year.   
 
CURRENT (2023) PLAN TYPES AND COSTS (EMPLOYER/ EMPLOYEE)  
As shown in the chart below, we have 5 employees enrolled in single plans, 1 employee enrolled 
in a Single + Child Plan, three (3) employees in a Single + Spouse Plan, and three (3) employees 
enrolled in Family Plans. All our employees currently choose the Gold 3 Plan option with the 
HSA, except for one (1) employee that opts into the Platinum 1 Plan.  
 
The deductible for the Gold 3 Plan is $3,200 for Single Plans, and $6,400 for all other plans 
(Single + Child, Single + Spouse, and Family). Since employees with the Gold 3 Plan receive a 
$3,000 Health Savings Account annually, their current out of pocket maximum is $200 annually. 
Employees with Single + Child, Single + Spouse, and Family Plans receive a $5,000 Health 
Savings Account annually, so their out-of-pocket maximum is $1,400 annually.  
 

 
 
As depicted above in Table 1, employees pay $27 weekly if they have a single plan ($116 
monthly or $1,394 annually), $52 weekly for Single + Child ($224 monthly or $2,691 annually), 
$54 weekly for Single + Spouse ($232 monthly or $2,788 annually), and $75 weekly for Family 
($326 monthly or $3,918 annually).  

Single Single + 
Child

Single + 
Spouse Family

Total Enrolled 5              1            3                3            
Opt-Out -              -             1                2            

HSA 4              1            3                3            
Gold 3 4              1            3                3            

Platinum 1 1              -             -                 -             
Total Cost 192          370        383            538        
Employer 165          318        329            463        
Employee 27            52          54              75          
Total Cost 830          1,602     1,660         2,332     

Employer (86%) 714          1,377     1,427         2,005     
Employee (14%) 116          224        232            326        

Total Cost 9,958       19,220   19,917       27,983   
Employer (86%) 8,564       16,529   17,129       24,066   
Employee (14%) 1,394       2,691     2,788         3,918     

Total Cost 224          432        448            629        
Employer (90.5%) 203          391        405            569        
Employee (9.5%) 21            41          43              60          

Total Cost 970          1,873     1,941         2,727     
Employer (90.5%) 878          -         -             -         
Employee (9.5%) 92            178        184            259        

Total Cost 11,645     22,475   23,290       32,722   
Employer (90.5%) 10,539     20,340   21,077       29,614   
Employee (9.5%) 1,106       2,135     2,213         3,109     

2023 Health Care - Table 1

Go
ld

 3
 P

la
ns

Al
l P

la
ns

Plan Type

Monthly 
Cost Per 

Employee

Pl
at

in
um

 1
 P

la
ns

Annual 
Cost Per 

Employee

# Enrolled

Annual 
Cost Per 

Employee

Weekly 
Cost Per 

Employee

Monthly 
Cost Per 

Employee

 Weekly 
Cost Per 

Employee 



Page 3 of 14 
 

On the other hand, the Town pays $165 weekly for single plans per employee ($714 monthly or 
$8,564 annually), $318 weekly for Single + Child plans per employee ($1,377 monthly or 
$16,529 annually), $329 weekly for Single + Spouse plans per employee ($1,427 monthly or 
$17,219 annually), and $463 weekly for Family Plans per employee ($2,005 monthly or $24,066 
annually).  
 

 
 
Overall, the Town of Weathersfield contributes $44,796 annually for employees opting into 
single plans, $51,386 for employees opting into Single + Spouse Plans, $16,529 for employees 
opting into Single + Child Plans, $72,197 for employees opting into Family Plans, $47,000 to 
fund employee Health Savings Accounts, and $27,875 for employees that opt out of Health Care 
coverage, for a grand total of $259,782 expended on employee healthcare in 2023.  
 
2024 COST BENEFIT ANALYSIS (2023 TO 2024 – STATUS QUO) 
 
The purpose of this analysis is to show what the Cost/Benefit is for the Employer & Employee if 
we purchase e the same Health Care coverage in 2024 based on the plan types that employees 
currently opt into (shown on Table 2 above).  
 
The deductible for MVP Gold 3 plans this year is $3,000 for single plans & $6,000 for Single + 
Plans, which is a decrease of $200/$400 respectively between 2023 to 2024. The Town 
contributed 78% toward the $6,400 deductible through the Health Savings Account in 2023 for 
employees that opted into a Single +Spouse, Single + Child, or Family Plan, and the employee 
was responsible for the remaining 12%. The Town contributed 94% toward the $3,200 deductible 
through the Health Savings Account in 2023 for employees that opted into a Single Plan, and the 
employee was responsible for the remaining 6%.  
 

 
 
Table 3 demonstrates that, if we keep coverage status quo, including out of pocket percent 
contributions in the form of an HSA, Employer contributions toward the HSA will decrease, and 

Plan Type Weekly # Enrolled Monthly Annually
Single 861          5               3,733        44,796        

Single+Spouse 988          3               4,282        51,386        
Single + Child 318          1               1,377        16,529        

Family 1,388       3               6,016        72,197        
HSA 904          11             3,917        47,000        

Opt Out 536          3               2,323        27,875        
Total 4,996      21,648      259,782     

2023 Total Cost (Town) Table 2

Single Family Single Family Single Family
Deductible 3,200                6,400                3,000                6,000                (200)                 (400)                 

HSA 3,000                5,000                2,820                4,680                (180)                 (320)                 
Employee Share 200                   1,400                171                   1,313                (29)                   (88)                   

Employer % 6% 22% 6% 22% -                       -                       
Employee % 94% 78% 94% 78% -                       -                       

2023 2024 DifferenceDescription

Health Savings Accounts 2023 - 2024 (Table 3)



Page 4 of 14 
 

Employee shares of their out-of-pocket expenses will similarly decrease. As shown in Table 3, 
the employer will save $180 per Single Plan HSA contribution and $320 per Family Plan HSA 
contribution. The employee will save $29 annually on their out-of-pocket expenses if they opt 
into a Single Plan, and $88 annually on their out-of-pocket expenses if they opt into a Family 
Plan.  
 

 
 
Overall, according to Table 4 above, the Town will save $2,960 annually regarding the HSA if 
we keep coverage status quo. 
 

 
 
As depicted above in Table 5, employees will pay $31 weekly if they have a single plan ($133 
monthly or $1,592 annually), $59 weekly for Single + Child ($256 monthly or $3,053 annually), 
$61 weekly for Single + Spouse ($265 monthly or $3,185 annually), and $86 weekly for Family 
($373 monthly or $4,474 annually). 

MVP 2023 MVP 2024
Annual Cost Annual Cost

Single 4 12,000          11,280         (720)         
Family 7 35,000          32,760         (2,240)      

Total 11 47,000          44,040         (2,960)      

# EnrolledPlan Type

Health Savings Accounts Cost Differences - (Table 4)

Difference

Single Single + 
Child

Single + 
Spouse Family

Total Enrolled 5             1                 3               3             
Opt-Out -             -                 1               2             

HSA 4             1                 3               3             
Gold 3 4             1                 3               3             

Platinum 1 1             -                 -               -             
Total Cost 219         422             437           615         
Employer 188         363             376           529         
Employee 31           59               61             86           
Total Cost 948         1,829          1,896        2,663      

Employer (86%) 815         1,573          1,630        2,290      
Employee (14%) 133         256             265           373         

Total Cost 11,374    21,951        22,748      31,960    
Employer (86%) 9,782      18,878        19,563      27,486    
Employee (14%) 1,592      3,073          3,185        4,474      

Total Cost 253         488             505           710         
Employer (90.5%) 229         441             457           643         
Employee (9.5%) 24           46               48             67           

Total Cost 1,095      2,113          2,190        3,077      
Employer (90.5%) 991         1,912          1,982        2,784      
Employee (9.5%) 104         201             208           292         

Total Cost 13,138    25,357        26,277      36,919    
Employer (90.5%) 11,890    22,948        23,780      33,411    
Employee (9.5%) 1,248      2,409          2,496        3,507      

2024 Health Care (Table 5)

Plan Type

A
ll 

Pl
an

s

# Enrolled

G
ol

d 
3 

Pl
an

s

 Weekly 
Cost Per 

Employee 
Monthly 
Cost Per 

Employee
Annual 

Cost Per 
Employee

Pl
at

in
um

 1
 P

la
ns

Weekly 
Cost Per 

Employee
Monthly 
Cost Per 

Employee
Annual 

Cost Per 
Employee



Page 5 of 14 
 

On the other hand, the Town will pay $188 weekly for single plans per employee ($815 monthly 
or $9,782 annually), $422 weekly for Single + Child plans per employee ($1,829 monthly or 
$18,878 annually), $437 weekly for Single + Spouse plans per employee ($1,630 monthly or 
$19,563 annually), and $529 weekly for Family Plans per employee ($2,290 monthly or $27,486 
annually).  

 

 
 
The total differences between the cost in 2023 and 2024 per week, month, and year are 
represented in Table 6 above.  
 

 
 

According to Table 7, the total increase in 2024 would be $23,175 if the Town decided to keep 
healthcare status quo.   
 

Single Single + 
Child

Single + 
Spouse Family

Total Enrolled -           -           -               -           
Opt-Out -           -           -               -           

HSA -           -           -               -           
Gold 3 -           -           -               -           

Platinum 1 -           -           -               -           
Total Cost 27        53        54             76        
Employer 23        45        47             66        
Employee 4          7          8               11        
Total Cost 118      228      236           331      

Employer (86%) 101      196      203           285      
Employee (14%) 17        32        33             46        

Total Cost 1,415   2,732   2,831        3,977   
Employer (86%) 1,217   2,349   2,434        3,420   
Employee (14%) 198      382      396           557      

Total Cost 29        55        57             81        
Employer (90.5%) 26        50        52             73        
Employee (9.5%) 3          5          5               8          

Total Cost 124      240      249           350      
Employer (90.5%) 113      1,912   1,982        2,784   
Employee (9.5%) 12        23        24             33        

Total Cost 1,493   2,882   2,987        4,197   
Employer (90.5%) 1,352   2,608   2,703        3,798   
Employee (9.5%) 142      274      284           399      

2023-2024 Health Care Cost Differences - Table 6

Plan Type

Al
l P

la
ns

# Enrolled

Go
ld

 3
 P

la
ns

 Weekly 
Cost Per 

Employee 
Monthly 
Cost Per 

Employee
Annual 

Cost Per 
Employee

Weekly 
Cost Per 

Employee
Monthly 
Cost Per 

Employee
Annual 

Cost Per 
Employee

Pl
at

in
um

 1
 P

la
ns

Plan Type Weekly Monthly Annually
Single (Gold 3) 94        406      4,869        

Single (Plat) 26        113      1,352        
Single+Spouse 140      609      7,303        
Single + Child 45        196      2,349        

Family 197      855      10,261      
HSA (57)       (247)     (2,960)      

Opt Out -       -       -           
Total 446      1,931   23,175     

2024 Total Cost (Town) - Table 7



Page 6 of 14 
 

2024 COST/BENEFIT ANALYSIS (BCBS V. MVP) 
 
Limitations: This cost/benefit analysis only considers plan deductibles, out of pocket maximums, 
and costs per plan type. Further analysis can be done that includes these factors upon request.  
 
The purpose of this analysis is to compare Blue Cross Blue Shield to MVP in relation to 2024 
cost and benefits.  
 
Non-Standard Plan – Deductibles v. Out of Pocket Maximums (Benefit Analysis) 
 
This first part of this review includes analyzing Non-Standard Plans between MVP and BCBS. 
The first column shows the MVP plan, and the Second shows the comparable. A negative 
number indicates that MVP HSA  a higher deductible or out of pocket maximum, and a positive 
number indicates that BCBS HSA  a higher deductible or out of pocket maximum.  
 

 
 
Following a review of the information above, the Gold CDHP plan is the most comparable to 
what employees currently have through MVP, and the deductible & out of pocket maximums are 
lower, indicating that both the employer and employee will save on the Health Savings Account 
(employer) or Out of Pocket costs (employee).  

 

 
 
Table 8, above, demonstrates a $5,162 savings in the HSA between 2023 to 2024 by switching to 
Blue Cross Blue Shield and offering the Gold CDHP plan.  
 
In addition to the savings on the HSA, employees with a single plan will save $29 annually and 
employees with a single + spouse, single + child, and family plan will save $153 annually 
between 2023 and 2024.  
 
 

MVP BCBS MVP BCBS Difference MVP BCBS Difference
Gold 2 Gold 850/ 1700 EMB 1250/2500 400/800 6000/13200 EMB 5150/10300 (850/2900)
Gold 3 QHDHP Gold CDHP 3000/6000 AGG 2850/5700 (150/300) 3000/6000 AGG 2850/5700 (150/300)
Reflective Silver 1 Silver Reflective 2500/5000 EMB 3250/6500 750/1500 7500/15000 EMB 8750/17500 1250/2500
Reflective Silver 2 QHDHP Silver CDHP Refle 5800/11600 EMB 5500/11000 (300/600) 5800/11600 EMB 5500/11000 (300/600)
Bronze 1 Bronze CDHP 7250/14000 EMB 7500/15000 250/1000 8400/16800 EMB 7500/15000 (900/1800)
Bronze 5 Bronze 9450/18900 EMB 9250/18500 (200/400) 9450/18900 EMB 9250/18500 (200/400)

Out of Pocket MaximumDeductibleNon Standard Plan Comparables

BCBS v. MVP Deductible & Out of Pocket Maximums - Table 8

MVP 2023 BCBS 2024
Annual Cost Annual Cost

Single 4 12,000          10,716         (1,284)      
Family 7 35,000          31,122         (3,878)      

Total 11 47,000         41,838        (5,162)     

Health Savings Accounts Cost Differences - (Table 8)

Plan Type # Enrolled Difference



Page 7 of 14 
 

Non-Standard Plans – Cost Analysis 
 

 
 

Table 9 shows that the BCBS Gold CDHP Single Plan is $443 lower annually than the MVP 
Gold 3 QHDHP Plan.  

 

 
 
Table 10 shows that the BCBS Gold CDHP Employee + Spouse Plan is $886 lower annually 
than the MVP Gold 3 QHDHP Plan.  
 

 
 
Table 11 shows that the BCBS Gold CDHP Employee + Child Plan is $855 lower annually than 
the MVP Gold 3 QHDHP Plan.  
 

 
 
Table 12 shows that the BCBS Gold CDHP Family Plan is $1,244 lower annually than the MVP 
Gold 3 QHDHP Plan.  

MVP BCBS MVP BCBS Difference
Gold 2 Gold 11,330      10,869      (461)          
Gold 3 QHDHP Gold CDHP 11,374      10,931      (443)          
Reflective Silver 1 Silver Reflective 8,640        8,991        350           
Reflective Silver 2 QHDHP Silver CDHP Reflective 8,883        8,923        40             
Bronze 1 Bronze CDHP 7,644        7,910        265           
Bronze 5 Bronze 7,656        8,029        373           

Single Plan - Annual Costs (MVP v. BCBS) - Table 9

MVP BCBS MVP BCBS Difference
Gold 2 Gold 22,659      21,737              (922)          
Gold 3 QHDHP Gold CDHP 22,748      21,862              (886)          
Reflective Silver 1 Silver Reflective 17,281      17,981              700           
Reflective Silver 2 QHDHP Silver CDHP Reflective 17,766      17,846              79             
Bronze 1 Bronze CDHP 15,289      15,819              530           
Bronze 5 Bronze 15,312      16,057              745           

Employee + Spouse Plan Annual Costs - Table 10

MVP BCBS MVP BCBS Difference
Gold 2 Gold 21,866        20,976         (890)               
Gold 3 QHDHP Gold CDHP 21,951        21,097         (855)               
Reflective Silver 1 Silver Reflective 16,676        17,352         676                
Reflective Silver 2 QHDHP Silver CDHP Reflective 17,145        17,221         77                  
Bronze 1 Bronze CDHP 14,754        15,265         512                
Bronze 5 Bronze 14,776        15,495         719                

Employee + Child Plan Annual Costs - Table 11

MVP BCBS MVP BCBS Difference
Gold 2 Gold 31,836       30,541        (1,296)         
Gold 3 QHDHP Gold CDHP 31,960       30,716        (1,244)         
Reflective Silver 1 Silver Reflective 24,279       25,263        984             
Reflective Silver 2 QHDHP Silver CDHP Reflective 24,963       25,074        110             
Bronze 1 Bronze CDHP 21,481       22,298        817             
Bronze 5 Bronze 21,514       22,561        1,047           

Family Plan Annual Costs - Table 12



Page 8 of 14 
 

Employee Cost Differences (BCBS v. MVP) 2024 
 

 
 

According to Table 13 above, employees opting into a Single BCBS plan in 2024 will save $1 
weekly, $5 monthly, and $62 annually. Employees opting into a Single + Spouse Plan will save 
$2 weekly, $10 monthly, and $124 annually. Employees opting into a Single + Child Plan will 
save $2 weekly, $10 monthly, and $120 annually. Employees opting into a Family Plan will save 
$3 weekly, $15 monthly, and $174 annually.  
 
Employer Cost Differences (BCBS v. MVP) 2024 
 
The Employer will similarly save with BCBS, which equates to $381 annually per Single Plan, 
$762 annually per Single + Spouse Plan, $735 annually per Single + Child Plan, and $1,070 
annually per Family Plan. Overall, if there are no changes to Plan Types in 2024, the Employer 
will pay $8,254 less between the MVP Gold 3 Plan and BCBS Gold CDHP Plan by switching 
from MVP to BCBS in 2024.  

Single Single + 
Spouse

Single + 
Child Family

Total Cost 219          437          422      615      
Employer 188          376          363      529      
Employee 31            61            59        86        
Total Cost 948          1,896       1,829   2,663   

Employer (86%) 815          1,630       1,573   2,290   
Employee (14%) 133          265          256      373      

Total Cost 11,374     22,748     21,951 31,960 
Employer (86%) 9,782       19,563     18,878 27,486 
Employee (14%) 1,592       3,185       3,073   4,474   

Total Cost 210          420          406      591      
Employer 181          362          349      508      
Employee 29            59            57        83        
Total Cost 911          1,822       1,758   2,560   

Employer (86%) 783          1,567       1,512   2,201   
Employee (14%) 128          255          246      358      

Total Cost 10,931     21,862     21,097 30,716 
Employer (86%) 9,401       18,801     18,143 26,416 
Employee (14%) 1,530       3,061       2,954   4,300   

Total Cost 9              17            16        24        
Employer 7              15            14        21        
Employee 1              2              2          3          
Total Cost 37            74            71        104      

Employer (86%) 32            63            61        89        
Employee (14%) 5              10            10        15        

Total Cost 443          886          855      1,244   
Employer (86%) 381          762          735      1,070   
Employee (14%) 62            124          120      174      

Employee / Employer Cost Differences MVP V. BCBS 2024 (Table 13)

DI
FF

ER
EN

CE

 Weekly 
Cost Per 

Employee 
Monthly 
Cost Per 

Employee
Annual 

Cost Per 
Employee

Plan Type
20

24
 B

CB
S 

G
ol

d 
CD

H
P  Weekly 

Cost Per 
Employee 
Monthly 
Cost Per 

Employee
Annual 

Cost Per 
Employee

20
24

 M
VP

 G
ol

d 
3 

 Weekly 
Cost Per 

Employee 
Monthly 
Cost Per 

Employee
Annual 

Cost Per 
Employee



Page 9 of 14 
 

Total Increases (2023 MVP to 2024 BCBS)  
 
As depicted on Page 5 - Table 7, the Employer will pay $23,175 more in 2024 if we keep 
coverage status quo with MVP.  
 
Further, in 2024, by keeping coverage status quo with MVP (between 2023 to 2024) employees 
opting into a single plan will spend $4 more weekly, $17 more monthly, and $198 more annually. 
Employees opting into an Employee + Spouse Plan will spend $9 more weekly, $41 more 
monthly, and $494 more annually. Employees opting into an Employee + Child Plan will spend 
$5 more weekly, $24 more monthly, and $285 more annually, and employees opting into a 
Family Plan will spend $11 more weekly, $46 more monthly, and $557 more annually.  
 
By switching to BCBS in 2024, the increase from 2023 MVP to 2024 BCBS is lower than the 
cost increases between the 2023 and 2024 MVP Plans.  
 

 
 

According to Table 14, the total cost to the Employer in 2024 with BCBS will be $274,702 
compared to $282,956 with MVP. The total increase will be $14,921 with BCBS compared to 
$23,175 with MVP.  
 
2024 MVP v. BCBS Platinum Plans 
 
This section of the analysis compares the 2024 MVP Platinum Plan to the 2024 BCBS Platinum 
Plan and compares the cost and benefit to the BCBS Gold CDHP to determine if it’s more 
beneficial to both the employee and employer to change to a low deductible plan in 2024.   
 
This analysis assumes that all employees will opt into a similar Platinum Plan type as compared 
to the 2023 MVP plan types (Single, Employee + Spouse, Employee + Child, Family).  In other 
words, it is assumed that we will have 5 Single Platinum plans, 1 Employee + Child, 3 Employee 
+ Spouse, and 3 family enrollees.  
 

 
[Continued on Next Page] 

 

Plan Type Weekly Monthly Annually
Single (Gold CDHP) 723         3,134          37,603      

Single (Plat) 261         1,133          13,591      
Single+Spouse 1,085      4,700          56,404      
Single + Child 349         1,512          18,143      

Family 1,524      6,604          79,248      
HSA 805         3,487          41,838      

Opt Out 536         2,323          27,875      
Total 5,283     22,892       274,702   

2024 Total Cost (Town) - Table 14



Page 10 of 14 
 

Platinum Plan Deductibles/ Out of Pocket Costs (BCBS v. MVP)  

There is no difference between the dollar amounts for deductibles and out of pocket costs 
between BCBS & MVP. The deductible is $450/$900 & out of pocket cost is $1500/$3000.  

 

Comparison to BCBS Gold CDHP 

Although the deductible and out of pocket costs are significantly higher with the BCBS 
Gold CDHP plan ($2,850/$5,700), this plan is an HSA eligible plan and employees would 
receive a $2,679 HSA for Single Plans and $4,446 HSA for Employee + (Child, Spouse, 
Family). The net difference for the deductible & Out-of-Pocket maximum is $171 for 
Single Plans, and $1,254 for Employee + (Child, Spouse, Family).  

If we changed to the Platinum Plan, an employee opting into a Single Plan will pay $279 
more toward their deductible annually, and employees opting into the Employee + (Child, 
Spouse, Family) plans will pay $354 less towards their deductibles.  

Regarding the Out-of-Pocket maximums, if we changed to the Platinum Plan, an 
employee opting into a Single Plan will have a $1,329 higher Out-of-Pocket maximum, 
and employees opting into Employee + (Child, Spouse, Family), will have a $1,746 
higher Out-of-Pocket maximum.  

Platinum Plan Costs 2024 BCBS v. MVP (Employee + Town) 

 

Table 16 shows the comparison between the BCBS & MVP Platinum Plans for both the 
employee and employer per plan type.  

MVP BCBS MVP BCBS Difference MVP BCBS Difference
Platinum Platinum 450/900 EMB 450/900 Stacked - 1500/3000 EMB 1500/3000 Stacked -

BCBS v. MVP Deductible & Out of Pocket Maximums - Table 15

Non Standard Plan Comparables Deductible Out of Pocket Maximum

Single Single + 
Spouse

Single + 
Child Family

Total Cost 253             505             488             710             
Employer (90.5%) 229             457             441             643             
Employee (9.5%) 24               48               46               67               

Total Cost 1,095          2,190          2,113          3,077          
Employer (90.5%) 991             1,982          1,912          2,784          
Employee (9.5%) 104             208             201             292             

Total Cost 13,138        26,277        25,357        36,919        
Employer (90.5%) 11,890        23,780        22,948        33,411        
Employee (9.5%) 1,248          2,496          2,409          3,507          

Total Cost 261             523             504             734             
Employer 237             473             457             665             
Employee 25               50               48               70               
Total Cost 1,133          2,265          2,186          3,183          

Employer (90.5%) 1,025          2,050          1,978          2,880          
Employee (9.5%) 108             215             208             302             

Total Cost 13,591        27,182        26,231        38,191        
Employer (90.5%) 12,300        24,600        23,739        34,563        
Employee (9.5%) 1,291          2,582          2,492          3,628          

20
24

 B
CB

S 
Pl

at
in

um

 Weekly Cost 
Per Employee 

Monthly Cost 
Per Employee

Annual Cost 
Per Employee

Employee / Employer Cost Differences MVP V. BCBS 2024 (Table 16)

Plan Type

20
24

 M
VP

 P
la

tin
um

 Weekly Cost 
Per Employee 

Monthly Cost 
Per Employee

Annual Cost 
Per Employee



Page 11 of 14 
 

According to Table 17 (below), the MVP Platinum plan cost is lower than the BCBS Platinum 
plan cost, for both the employee and employer per plan.  

 

 
See Table 18 below. The cost of the MVP Platinum Plan is $8,752 lower overall as compared to 
the BCBS Platinum Plan.  

 

 
2024 Difference in Cost to Town (BCBS Gold CDHP v. MVP Platinum)  

According to Table 19 below, if the Town changes to the MVP Platinum Plan (only), it will cost 
the Town $7,147 more than offering the BCBS Gold CDHP Plan.  

 

 
Note, Table 19 includes 1 Single Platinum Plan in the BCBS Gold + 1 Platinum column, as we 
currently have 1 employee enrolled in the 2023 MVP Platinum Plan.  

Single Single + 
Spouse

Single + 
Child Family

Total Cost (9)                (17)              (17)              (24)              
Employer (8)                (16)              (15)              (22)              
Employee (1)                (2)                (2)                (2)                
Total Cost (38)              (75)              (73)              (106)            

Employer (90.5%) (34)              (68)              (66)              (96)              
Employee (9.5%) (4)                (7)                (7)                (10)              

Total Cost (453)            (906)            (874)            (1,272)         
Employer (90.5%) (410)            (819)            (791)            (1,151)         
Employee (9.5%) (43)              (86)              (83)              (121)            

DI
FF

ER
EN

CE

 Weekly Cost 
Per Employee 

Monthly Cost 
Per Employee

Annual Cost 
Per Employee

Employee / Employer Cost Differences MVP V. BCBS 2024 (Table 17)

Plan Type

Plan Type # Enrolled MVP BCBS Difference
Single 5 59,451              61,500                   (2,049)            
Single + Spouse 3 71,341              73,800                   (2,458)            
Single + Child 1 22,948              23,739                   (791)               
Family 3 100,234            103,688                 (3,454)            

Total 12 253,974           262,727                (8,752)            

2024 MVP v. BCBS Platinum Plan Cost Differences (Town) - Table 18

Plan Type # Enrolled MVP Platinum BCBS Gold + 1 Plat Difference
Single 5 59,451              51,194                      8,257              

Single + Spouse 3 71,341              56,404                      14,937            
Single + Child 1 22,948              18,143                      4,805              

Family 3 100,234            79,248                      20,986            
HSA 0/11 -                       41,838                      (41,838)          

Opt Out 3 27,875              27,875                      -                     
281,849            274,702                    7,147              

2024 MVP v. BCBS Platinum Plan Cost Differences (Town) - Table 19

Totals



Page 12 of 14 
 

HEALTH SAVINGS ACCOUNT ANALYSIS 2023-2024 

On Pages 3 & 4 of this study we learned that the existing arrangement with the HSA is 
disproportionate between employees that opt into a Single Plan and Employees that opt into an 
Employee + (Child, Spouse, or Family) Plan. For example, in 2023, employees opting into a 
Single Plan have a $3,200 deductible, and receive a $3,000 HSA, OR a 94% contribution toward 
their deducible through the HSA.  

Employees opting into an Employee + (Spouse, Child, or Family) Plan have a $6,400 deductible 
and receive a $5,000 HSA, or a 78% contribution toward their deductible through the HSA. 
There is a need to adjust this to an equal percentage. 

The current share of Health Insurance is 86% (Employer) and 14% (Employee). Adjusting the 
HSA to 14% of the deductible resolves the current disparity between employees in Single Plans 
and employees in Employee + (Child, Spouse, or Family) Plans.  

By doing this numbers will shift, which means the comparisons in the previous pages between 
MVP and BCBS will similarly shift. For that reason, a new comparison is completed below. We 
also learned through this study that the arrangement with the Gold 3 / Gold CDHP Plans are 
benefit the employee and employer more than the Platinum Plans for both BCBS and MVP.  

For this reason, I no longer include the one (1) platinum plan we currently offer, and 
automatically include that as a Gold 3 Plan OR Gold CDHP Plan in 2024 in the analysis below, 
ruling out the need to offer the Platinum Plan in 2024.  
 
HSA - 2023 MVP v. Adjusted HSA % - 2024 MVP  

Table 20, below, shows the # of employees enrolled in each type of HSA (Single or Family), the 
HSA amount received from the Town in 2023, the deductible, employee share in terms of dollars, 
employee & employer percentages, the total cost per HSA type (Town), and the total cost to the 
Town for all HSA accounts funded.  

MVP 2023 is compared to MVP 2024, and this comparison shows that we will spend $2,020 
more in 2024 as compared to 2023 with the adjusted share percentages.  

 

 

[Continued on next page] 

Description Family Single Description Family Single Description Family Single
# Enrolled 7 4 Est. # Enrolled 7            5              Est. # Enrolled -              1             

HSA Amount 5,000      3,000     HSA Amount 5,160     2,580       HSA Amount 160         (420)       
Deductible 6,400      3,200     Deductible 6,000     3,000       Deductible (400)        (200)       

Employee Share $ 1,400      200        Employee Share $ 840        420          Employee Share $ (560)        220         
Employee Share % 22% 6% Employee Share % 14% 14% Employee Share % -8% 8%
Employer Share % 78% 94% Employer Share % 86% 86% Employer Share % 8% -8%

Cost (Town) Per Plan 35,000   12,000   Cost (Town) Per Plan 36,120   12,900    Cost (Town) Per Plan 1,120      900        
Total Cost (Town) Total Cost (Town) Total Cost (Town)

2023 - 2024 HSA Adjustments MVP - Table 20
2023 MVP W/ HSA 

47,000                     

2024 MVP W/ HSA

49,020                      2,020                        

2023 - 2024 Difference



Page 13 of 14 
 

HSA - 2023 MVP v. Adjusted HSA %- 2024 BCBS  

Table 21, below, shows the # of employees enrolled in each type of HSA (Single or Family), the 
HSA amount received from the Town in 2023, the deductible, employee share in terms of dollars, 
employee & employer percentages, the total cost per HSA type (Town), and the total cost to the 
Town for all HSA accounts funded. MVP 2023 is compared to MVP 2024, and this comparison 
shows that we will spend $431 less in 2024 as compared to 2023 with the adjusted share 
percentages.  

 
 
HSA - 2024 MVP v. 2024 BCBS 

Table 22, below, shows the differences between an 86% / 14% contribution toward the 
deductible between MVP & BCBS in 2024. Shares will be higher for both the Employee and 
Employer with MVP in 2024. The total cost difference is $2,451.  

 

2023 – 2024 Health Insurance (MVP)  

Table 23 below shows that the Town will spend $26,046 more in 2024 with MVP.  

 

Description Family Single Description Family Single Description Family Single
# Enrolled 7 4 Est. # Enrolled 7            5              Est. # Enrolled -              1             

HSA Amount 5,000      3,000     HSA Amount 4,902     2,451       HSA Amount (98)          (549)       
Deductible 6,400      3,200     Deductible 5,700     2,850       Deductible (700)        (350)       

Employee Share $ 1,400      200        Employee Share $ 798        399          Employee Share $ (602)        199         
Employee Share % 22% 6% Employee Share % 14% 14% Employee Share % -8% 8%
Employer Share % 78% 94% Employer Share % 86% 86% Employer Share % 8% -8%

Cost (Town) Per Plan 35,000   12,000   Cost (Town) Per Plan 34,314   12,255    Cost (Town) Per Plan (686)       255        
Total Cost (Town) Total Cost (Town) Total Cost (Town)

2023 - 2024 HSA Adjustments MVP to BCBS - Table 21
2023 MVP W/ HSA 2024 BCBS W/ HSA 2023 - 2024 Difference

47,000                     46,569                      (431)                         

Description Family Single
Est. # Enrolled -             -               
HSA Amount 258        129          
Deductible 300        150          

Employee Share $ 42          21            
Employee Share % -             -               
Employer Share % -             -               
Cost (Town) Per Plan 1,806     645         

Total Cost (Town)

Table 22

2,451                        

2024 MVP V. BCBS HSA Differences 

2023 Annual Cost 2024 Annual Cost 2023-2024
MVP MVP Difference

Single 4 44,796                     48,908                  4,112               
Employee +Spouse 3 51,386                     58,689                  7,303               
Employee + Child 1 16,529                     18,878                  2,349               

Family 3 72,197                     82,458                  10,261             
HSA 11/12 47,000                     49,020                  2,020               

Opt Out 3 27,875                     27,875                  -                       
259,782                  285,828               26,046            

# EnrolledPlan Type

Total

2023 - 2024 Health Insurance (MVP) - Table 23



Page 14 of 14 
 

2023 MVP – 2024 BCBS Health Insurance  

Table 24, below, shows that the Town will spend $15,461 more in 2024 with BCBS.  

 

2024 MVP v. 2024 BCBS  

Table 25, below, shows that the Town will save $10,585 by switching to BCBS in 2024.  

 

 
Recommendation  
 
Following a careful review of the Towns existing coverage and costs, and Cost-Benefit Analysis 
between BCBS & MVP in 2023 and 2024, I recommend the following:  

1) To change from MVP to BCBS in 2024 and offer the BCBS Gold CDHP Plan to 
employees with an 86% (Employer) / 14% (Employee) contribution share.  
 

2) To offer an HSA in 2024 to employees with an 86% (Employer) / 14% (Employee) share 
of the deductible for all Plan Types. 

 

2023 Annual Cost 2024 Annual Cost 2023-2024
MVP BCBS Difference

Single 4 44,796                     47,003                  2,208               
Employee +Spouse 3 51,386                     56,404                  5,019               
Employee + Child 1 16,529                     18,143                  1,614               

Family 3 72,197                     79,248                  7,051               
HSA 11/12 47,000                     46,569                  (431)                 

Opt Out 3 27,875                     27,875                  -                       
259,782                  275,243               15,461            Total

2023 - 2024 Health Insurance (MVP to BCBS) - Table 24

Plan Type # Enrolled

2024 Annual Cost 2024 Annual Cost 2023-2024
MVP BCBS Difference

Single 4 48,908                     47,003                  (1,904)              
Employee +Spouse 3 58,689                     56,404                  (2,285)              
Employee + Child 1 18,878                     18,143                  (735)                 

Family 3 82,458                     79,248                  (3,210)              
HSA 12 49,020                     46,569                  (2,451)              

Opt Out 3 27,875                     27,875                  -                       
285,828                  275,243               (10,585)           

2024 MVP Insurance V. 2024 BCBS Insurance - Table 25

Plan Type # Enrolled

Total



Brandon Gulnick 
Town Manager 

TEL. (802) 674-2626 
Weathersfieldvt.org 

 

TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 
OFFICE OF THE SELECTBOARD/         

TOWN MANAGER 

5259 US ROUTE 5 
ASCUTNEY, VERMONT 05030 

 

October 12, 2023 

 
 
 
 

Susanne Terrill 
Human Resources 

 
Olivia Savage 
Principal Clerk 

 

RE: FY24 Q1 Finance Report 
 
 
Dear Selectors,  
 
General Fund revenues are at 31% and expenses are at 30%. Most of our Special Appropriations 
have been invoiced and paid, and our county tax & county courthouse bond payment has been 
made. The $40,000 special appropriation has been transferred to Fire Apparatus reserves. The 
$10,000 transfer from the PD budget to Police Cruiser Reserves has been made. Overall, the 
General Fund is on track for Q1. See table 1 below.  
 

 
 

General Fund FY24 Period 1 Period 2 Period 3 Q1 FY24 FY24
Revenues Budget Actual Actual Actual Actual Uncollected % Budget

Tax Revenue 1,267,678     105,640    105,640      105,640        316,920            950,759         25%
Admin 219,863        79,507      43,040        7,272            129,819            90,044           59%
Finance 11,000          -                -                 -                    -                        11,000           0%
Town Clerk 46,265          2,653        3,719          3,840            10,211              36,054           22%
Listers 15,000          -                -                 -                    -                        15,000           0%
Land Use 6,122            811           1,284          398               2,493                3,629             41%
Police 16,000          24             1,050          -                    1,074                14,926           7%
Gen. Fire 40,000          40,000      -                 -                    40,000              (0)                  100%
AVFD -                   -                        -                    
WWVD -                   -                        -                    
Library -                   -                        -                    

Total Revenues 1,621,928    228,634    154,732     117,151        500,517            1,121,411     31%

General Fund FY24 Period 1 Period 2 Period 3 Q1 FY24 FY24
Expense Budget Actual Actual Actual Actual Unexpended % Budget

Admin 489,133        62,224      37,016        71,881          171,121            318,013         35%
Finance 115,387        9,273        8,678          12,281          30,232              85,155           26%
Town Clerk 142,052        11,118      9,247          22,249          42,614              99,438           30%
Listers 64,673          3,524        1,963          2,954            8,440                56,233           13%
Land Use 51,066          2,891        5,244          326               8,461                42,605           17%
Police 382,786        24,662      23,825        49,904          98,390              284,396         26%
Gen. Fire 88,442          -                4,284          40,557          44,841              43,601           51%
AVFD 91,361          4,225        13,797        13,277          31,300              60,061           34%
WWVD 56,571          6,510        7,944          5,722            20,175              36,396           36%
Library 140,457        13,037      11,074        13,278          37,389              103,068         27%

Total Expenditures 1,621,928    137,463    123,072     232,429        492,964            1,128,964     30%

Net Revenue/Expense -                   91,171      31,660       (115,278)      7,552                (7,552)           

FY24 Budget/Actual Summary Q1 - Table 1



 
Highway Fund revenues are at 31% and expenses are at 28%. The grader & dump truck payments 
have been made. Overall, the Highway Department is on track for Q1. See table 1 below.  
 

 
 
Solid Waste Fund fixed revenues are at 99%. Fixed revenues are received through the solid waste 
assessment in Weathersfield, Reading, and West Windsor, and are made up of these three (3) 
annual payments, which have all been received as of September 30th. Variable revenues are at 28%, 
which includes revenues from punch ticket sales. Fixed expenses are at 25%, and variable expenses 
are at 25%. Overall, the Solid Waste Fund appears to be on track for Q1. See Table 3 below.  
 

 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Brandon Gulnick 
Town Manager 
Town of Weathersfield 
5259 US Route 5, PO BOX 550, Ascutney, VT 
E. Townmanager@weathersfield.org 
P. (802) 674-2626 F. (802) 674-2117 
www.weathersfieldvt.org 
 
 
 
 

FY24 Period 1 Period 2 Period 3 Q1 FY24 FY24
Budget Actual Actual Actual Actual Unexpended % Budget

Total Revenue 1,172,494    117,014    117,044     125,551        359,610            812,884         31%
Total Expense 1,172,494    59,496      92,748       174,604        326,848            845,646         28%

Net Revenue/ Expense -                   57,519      24,296       (49,053)        32,762              (32,762)         

Highway Fund - Table 2

FY24 Period 1 Period 2 Period 3 Q1 FY24 FY24
Budget Actual Actual Actual Actual Unexpended % Budget

Fixed Revenues 142,671        -                77,150        64,350          141,500            1,171             99%
Variable Revenues 192,098        6,812        22,213        24,627          53,652              138,446         28%

Total Revenue 334,769        6,812        99,363        88,977          195,152            139,617         58%

Fixed Expenditures 142,671        6,317        4,587          22,681          33,584              109,087         24%
Variable Expenditures 192,098        19,489      3,858          23,750          47,097              145,001         25%

Total Expense 334,769        25,806      8,445          46,430          80,681              254,088         24%

Fixed Revenue/Expense -                   (6,317)      72,563       41,669          107,916            (107,916)       
Variable Revenue/Expense -                   (12,677)    18,354       878               6,555                (6,555)           

Total Net Revenue/Expense -                   (18,994)    90,917       42,547          114,471            (114,471)       

Solid Waste Fund - Table 3



TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD, VERMONT 
VILLAGE WASTEWATER COMMITTEE 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 
 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

I. PURPOSE AND MISSION 
The purpose of the Village Wastewater Committee is to work with our engineering firm 
during the development of the Weathersfield Wastewater Feasibility Study, which 
includes identifying whether there is a wastewater problem and need, potential 
solutions, and what the cost would be for each potential solution. The Village 
Wastewater Committee will review the engineers preliminary engineering report, draft 
report, and final report, and make recommendations to the Selectboard regarding its 
opinion on this work, and what our next steps should be. 
 

II. ORGANIZATION 
a. A Village Wastewater Committee will be established for both villages, and be 

titled the “Perkinsville Village Wastewater Committee,” and the “Ascutney 
Village Wastewater Committee.”  
 

b. Each Committee will have three 3-5 members, consisting of a Selectboard or 
Planning Commission member, and other town residents.  
 

c. The Committee, at the first meeting after appointment, shall conduct a 
reorganization meeting, electing a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and Clerk.  
 

III. MEETINGS 
a. The Committee shall comply with all provisions of Vermont’s Open Meeting 

Law. 
 

b. At its reorganization meeting, the Committee shall establish a regular meeting 
day, time, and location.  
 

c. The Committee shall publish an agenda in accordance with the statutes.  
 

d. The Committee shall keep written minutes of all the meetings. Minutes of the 
meetings will be approved at the following meeting, signed by the Chairperson, 
and submitted to the Town Clerk for recording.  
 

IV. REPORTS 
a. The Committee shall report to the Selectboard during the second Selectboard 

meeting each month, summarizing its activities and the progress on the 
Wastewater Feasibility Study in general.  
 

b. The Committee shall submit an annual report for publication in the Town Report. 
 



TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD, VERMONT 
VILLAGE WASTEWATER COMMITTEE 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 
 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

V. INCONSISTENT POLICIES REPEALED  
 
This policy shall amend and replace any provisions of any policy of the Town of 
Weathersfield in effect at the time of enactment of this amended policy governing any 
activity included in this Policy.  
 

VI. SEVERABILITY  
 
If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
Policy, or any part thereof, is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or invalid or 
ineffective by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the 
validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions of this Policy or any part thereof. 
 
The Selectboard hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, 
subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase thereof irrespective of the fact that 
any one or more sections, subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, 
or phrases be declared unconstitutional or ineffective.  
 

VII. EFFECT  
 
No section of this Policy shall be construed to supersede or replace any Vermont 
statute.  
 
This amended Policy shall be entered in the minutes of the Selectboard’s meeting it 
was amended at.  
 
The foregoing Policy is hereby adopted by the Selectors of the Town of 
Weathersfield, Vermont, this Sixth (6th) day of November 2023, and is effective as of 
this date until amended or repealed. 

 
 
____________________________ 
Michael Todd, Chair Kelly O’Brien, Clerk 
 
_____________________________ 
David Fuller, Member Wendy Smith, Member 
 

_____________________________  
August Murray, Member 



TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD  

APPOINTED OFFICIAL QUESTIONNAIRE  
  

  

Name:  Brian W. Bosenberg  Date:  Aug. 30, 2023   

Address:  71 Hoisington Road, Perkinsville, VT 05151    

Phone Number:  802-369-9518 Email:  brian.bosenberg@gmail.com  

  
OFFICE DESIRED  

  

 1879 School Committee   Animal Control Officer  

 Budget Committee   Connecticut River Joint Comm. Rep  

 Conservation Commission   Energy Coordinator  

 Fence Viewer   Green Up Coordinator  

 Martin Memorial Hall Trustee   Parks & Recreation  

X Planning Commission   Transportation Advisory Committee  

 Solid Waste Management District Rep   Surveyor of Wood & Lumber  

 Tree Warden   Veterans Memorial Committee  

 Weigher of Coal   Zoning Board of Adjustment  

 Fire Warden   Mount Ascutney Regional Commission  

 Deputy Fire Warden   Southern Windsor County SW Mgmt. Dist.  

 Trustees of Public Funds  
  

 Village Wastewater Committee  

Reason(s) for desiring office: 

 
 

I have attended most planning commission meetings over the past year and believe I can 
contribute more to the planning process by becoming a commission member. As a commission 
member, I would put community input first in determining what is best for Weathersfield. Being a 
commission member is a valuable way to help shape the future development of our community 
and ensure that it benefits all stakeholders. 
 
Reason(s) you feel you are qualified for the office: Forty years of experience in land planning, 

master planning, site design, project development, scenic view designation, and a thorough 

understanding of by-laws and town ordinances as they apply to proposed projects. I have expertise 

in providing testimony at various boards and commissions, communicating complex design 

concepts, and navigating regulatory processes effectively. Throughout my career, I have been 

involved in projects across the northeast region, with a wide range of experiences dealing with 

different geographical areas, communities, and regulatory environments. This exposure has honed 

my adaptability and problem-solving skills, allowing me to tailor design solutions to diverse 

contexts. Retired from professional practice in 2019, I now enjoy volunteering for Meals & Wheels 

of Greater Springfield, The Weathersfield Food Pantry, and actively farming northern cold hardy 

wine grapes for the Vermont wine industry.  



 

Please return or email this form to:                     Brandon Gulnick, Town Manager  

Town of Weathersfield  

PO BOX 550, 5259 US Route 5 

Ascutney, VT 05040 

townmanager@weathersfield.org  

(802) 674-2626  





TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 
APPOINTED OFFICIAL APPLICATION 

Town of Weathersfield 
5259 US Route 5, Ascutney, VT 05030 

 

 

Weathersfield’s success as a community is largely due to the participation of residents in government and 
community affairs. Completing this form is one way to indicate your interest in being considered for 
appointment to one of the Boards, Commissions and Committees appointed by the Board of Selectmen. 
This form highlights the interests and qualifications of applicants willing to serve our community. All 
appointments remain at the discretion of the Selectboard. 

 
First Name:  Annmarie  Middle Initial:    Last Name: Christensen 

Address: 16 Old Center St., Perkinsville  
 

Telephone Number: 802-263-9530   Email Address: Anmar4@comcast.net   

Occupation:    Name of Employer:    

Do you reside in Weathersfield? Yes: x  No:   How Long?   

Are you a registered voter in Town? Yes: x  No:     

Age Group (Circle):  Under 18  18-34 35-60 Over 60 

Education (Circle):  High School Some College Graduate Advance
d 

Degrees/ Major Study of Interest: Computer, English  

Certifications or Other Vocational Training:    

Other Skills:    

Volunteer Experience and/or Previous or Current Community Involvement: 

Former president of Perkinsville trustees, Former member of conservation commission, former state legislator 
 
 
 
 
 

Please note that many boards require regular attendance at weekday evening meetings, either once or 
several times per month. 

* If you are appointed, could you meet: Mornings Afternoons X Evenings X  

What do you feel you can contribute to the community that may not be evident from information already 
on this form?   

 The entire village of Perkinsville, where I live, is affected by wastewater problems now or in the 
immediate future, and have no idea how much is will cost to stare the problem down 
 



TOWN OF WEATHERSFIELD 
APPOINTED OFFICIAL QUESTIONNAIRE 

 
 

Name:   Date:   

Address:   

Phone Number:   Email:   
 

OFFICE DESIRED 
 
 1879 School Committee  Animal Control Officer 
 Budget Committee  Connecticut River Joint Comm. Rep 
 Conservation Commission  Energy Coordinator 
 Fence Viewer  Green Up Coordinator 
 Martin Memorial Hall Trustee  Parks & Recreation 
 Planning Commission  Transportation Advisory Committee 
 Solid Waste Management District Rep  Surveyor of Wood & Lumber 
 Tree Warden  Veterans Memorial Committee 
 Weigher of Coal  Zoning Board of Adjustment 
 Fire Warden  Mount Ascutney Regional Commission 
 Deputy Fire Warden  Southern Windsor County SW Mgmt. Dist. 
 Trustees of Public Funds  Village Wastewater Committee 

 
Reason(s) for desiring office:   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Reason(s) you feel you are qualified for the office:   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please return or email this form to:  Brandon Gulnick, Town Manager 
Town of Weathersfield 
PO BOX 550, 5259 US Route 5 
Ascutney, VT 05040 
townmanager@weathersfield.org 
(802) 674-2626 

John Arrison August 28, 2023

PO BOX 460, Ascutney, VT 05030

(802) 291-0587 wattsup@tds.net

To assist in the development of Weathersfields Wastewater
Feasability Study.

X

Experience working with engineers, contractors, 
and planning agencies. 

mailto:townmanager@weathersfield.org





































	1. Select_Agenda_10-16-2023
	5. Selectboard Meeting Minutes - 10-02-2023
	7. 2024 Health Insurance Study - 10.12.2023
	Health Insurance Study Memo - 10.11.2023
	Health Insurance 2024

	8. Q1 Finance Report - 10.12.2023
	9. Village Wastewater Committee Policy - Second Reading - 10.16.2023
	11f. Questionnaire 2023-08-30 Planning Commission
	11ha. Appointment request Murray Wastewater
	11hb. AChristensen - Village Wastewater
	11hc. JArrison Village WasteWater Comm. App
	11hd. MRichardson - Village Wastewater
	12. Warrant



